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OPENING:

MS. WALLIS:  Good evening, everyone.  We'll bring to meeting to order.  I am Kay Wallis.  I am very pleased to be the facilitator for this April monthly meeting of the Richmond Southeast Shoreline Area Community Advisory Group.  Welcome.  

If you haven't already, please help yourself to an agenda and a couple of other supplementary materials at the back of the room.  Please help yourself to refreshments, which are, this evening, courtesy of Ms. Graves and an anonymous donor.  

AGENDA REVIEW:

I wanted to do a quick agenda review and a quick process review before we launch into the business of tonight's meeting.  The agenda will proceed with first an update from representatives from DTSC, and then we'll hear an update from Cherokee Simeon.  

We will then have a presentation on public participation from Yvette LaDuke, from DTSC, and then we'll go into the usual joint question and answer session, accommodating questions from the CAG or from the audience for either DTSC or Ms. LaDuke or for Cherokee Simeon.   

We will then have our break, hopefully, around 7:30, and then we'll come back to go into the toxics committee update, led by Dr. Linsley.  Then we'll have our public comment period, some brief committee updates, and  then our final wrap up activities.   Any questions or comments about the agenda before we move on to process review?  

PROCESS REVIEW:

Not much new to report tonight on process review.  We are going to rely on the couple of tools that have served us well in the last several meetings over the last year or so, and that is, of course, to adhere to the agenda.  It is my primary role to keep us on time and on topic.  As always, I will be contributing nothing to content, but I will be focused very much on keeping everybody flowing along and adjourning by 9:00 o'clock tonight.  

We also have an action item list up here where we have been recording items that require further or follow up actions where we are assigning a main person of responsibility-- person or agency and a timeline with those action items.  

We also have these green question or agenda request slips here at the front tables for CAG members.  There is a stack of these at the back for audience members.  It is just a way-- a place if you want to summarize a question or a comment that you think you might want to pose.  And if we for some reason don't have time to get all the questions or comments accommodated, then we will have it recorded.  It will be submitted to our secretary for some kind of appropriate follow up action.  This is also a place where one can request agenda items for future meetings for the Executive Committee to consider.  

We are asking people, when they have comments or questions, especially during the comment period, to try to limit them to about two minutes apiece.  This will ensure we can hear from as many people as possible.  So if we stick to about a two minute per person time limit; we have our action item list and we have the green question slips, that will help us keep things moving along.  

If there are no questions or comments, we can go right into our first item of business, which is the update from DTSC.  And I will give my microphone to Ms. Cook. 

UPDATES FROM DTSC & CSV 

MS. COOK:  Good evening.  Our update is at the back of the room.  I am assuming everybody has a copy of it.  

Basically at the Zeneca site, we were hoping to have done soil gas sampling at the end of March, but that was not done because we are still working on locations as well as looking for dry weather.  So that sampling probably will not take place until the June time period due to the ongoing weather conditions and trying to make sure we are at a dry season for collecting those samples.  

What is going to be coming up in the next 30 days is we hope to    we received the work plan that covers looking at in situ treatment technologies for the groundwater contamination, so that should be coming up in the next 30 days.  Also during this time period, we're still continuing the work on the southeast parcel and the lagoon.   

Harbor Front, we are hoping to finalize and receive the last site characterization report that deals with the Pacific Hard Chrome property.   

UC Richmond Field Station, we are still reviewing the facility wide strategy and protocols, so that is still ongoing in looking at data gaps that goes there.  So basically what this is-- they came up with a proposal of how to look at the property as a whole, so discussing the strategies and methodologies to try to fill in the data gaps that exist there.  

We also have the time critical removal report that has been submitted.  We hope to have public comments going out.  Those are the comments that we got today.  

Then I believe, Mr. Linsley, you said those comments will be coming next week?  Shortly, though.

MR. LINSLEY:  Yes. 

MS. COOK:  Bio Rad, we're reviewing the work plan they are looking at as part of the baseline risk assessment associated with the ground soil contamination.  They are also looking at collecting additional soil gas samples as part of their different ways of looking at problems with the treatability study.  

Marina Bay is-- really, not much has changed in Marina Bay over the time period.  That's what has been going on here.  I think the five year report has been submitted.  We are currently reviewing it.  We are still trying to get some ideas of where they are going.  

Harbor Way South, which is an old plating operation, they did a soil removal over there.  We are looking at doing some treatment of groundwater at the end of this month.  Basically it's an injection of material in there to help break down the soil that is in the underlying groundwater to hopefully an area that we are looking at with problems associated with that.  And Liquid Gold is continuing on its way.  

Mr. Linsley, you had one-- and I apologize.  I did not print it out.  You sent me an email that asked with regards to-- asked why the Department was not proposing to look at doing a time critical-- well, it is called a TCRA for the lagoons. 

MR. LINSLEY:  Yes.

MS. COOK:  Let me describe to some extent what a TCRA is and the reason why that is not happening.

MS. PADGETT:  Can you say what a TCRA is for everyone?

MS. COOK:  TCRA stands for a time critical removal action.  It is allowed under the Federal Superfund Program.  

With regards to that, it is done where the situation represents a serious public health threat or potential for a serious public health threat.  And one of the requirements placed on a TCRA is that it must be-- it must have a planning period for doing the work that is less than six months, and that is-- that last requirement is the reason why the Department is not considering a TCRA as it relates to the lagoons. 

To give you an idea of the agencies that have to be involved in interacting with regards to whatever the final decision is with regards to the lagoons, there would be the engineer permits.  That is 404.  U.S. Fish and Wildlife would have to be involved as well as Fish and Game.  The Water Board has permits and activities, and they must be dealt with. 

These lagoons are actually-- has part of them under the BCDC's jurisdiction, and there are a number of other agencies that we would have to confer with; that, plus the fact that the lagoons are covered under an East Bay Regional Park easement.  So we would have to ask them to coordinate with that.  

So there are a number of agencies that are involved in the lagoons that are here.  And I don't have any confidence that I can finish all of what would need to be happening as part of the six month planning period, so we have a great deal of coordination that we need to go through to figure it out. 

Another aspect with the TCRA that I would like to point out is there is no public review process in a TCRA.  A TCRA is serious enough that you need to immediately act.  And we put together the document that goes out; that is done; it is an evaluated there, and then we just move it forward.  And we provide the documents for people to comment on while we are doing the work.  

So we just think that the lagoon has a number of things.  We have a number of revision issues that we have to work on, so we do not believe that we can use the formal TCRA process that is available under the Federal Superfund Program.

MR. LINSLEY:  I would like to ask if the same number of agencies were involved in the recent time critical removal action at West Stege Marsh.  It was not a similar situation with agencies. 

MS. COOK:  When the marsh work was done a number of years ago? 

MR. LINSLEY:  No.  The one that was just completed. 

MS. COOK:  Doing the removal action work plan or the PCBs? 

MR. LINSLEY:  The PCBs. 

MS. COOK:  No, because those agencies-- this did not fall within their jurisdiction.  

The Corp of Engineering is basically work-- this is a water bearing zone, and we would have to have their permit as part of that activity.  It falls within their jurisdiction.  

U.S. Fish and Wildlife, they would see this as a habitat.   

East Bay Regional Park only owns part of-- they have an easement owning portions of it.  

So, no, I don't have the same agencies that I would have had to coordinate when soil removal is done.

MS. PADGETT:  Thank you for explaining that to us, Barbara.  

I have a couple of questions, and I know we are going out of order here.  Usually we postpone our comments to after you have spoken, but because this is an unusual item, I think it is helpful that we address it right after you have spoken.  

The-- you said that TCRA, time critical removal action, is put forward by the Department, DTSC if the planning period can be implemented in less than six months. Was that it?

MS. COOK:  The planning period has to be less than six months.

MS. PADGETT:  The planning period for the removal action to take place must be less than six months.  That wasn't clear, so thanks for clarifying that. 

MS. COOK:  I am sorry.

MS. PADGETT:  And what isn't answered and I think what has brought the question up is the criteria relating to the hazards on the site.  

So your answer said a TCRA is dependent on a planning period of less than six months, but what we're interested in hearing is if the planning period could be or was condensable into six months, would this qualify otherwise.

MS. COOK:  Let me add one more statement that goes with this, so maybe this would also take it along one more step back.  

Please understand a TCRA does not mean that the proposal would be that we would go out and excavate all the way.  It might mean capping in place; it might mean something else.  So I think there are a number of alternatives that will have to be reviewed and explored as to how to address the problems that exist there before we move forward.  I agree that it needs to move on a faster track with regards to waiting before the Lot One, Two, Three are ever implemented, but I don't want to take away from that process the ability of all the parties to sit down here and make sure that the final approach on how to address this problem is not vetted and reviewed and commented on to everybody's satisfaction.

MS. PADGETT:  We appreciate that, especially because being part of the public, we did have some frustration with the time critical removal actions that have taken place and it being fast tracked.  But, you know, they got done, and it was good that those hazards were removed.  

On this one, I think where we are having a disconnect and a significant disconnect is that on the last Cherokee schedule of events, it has-- it is like a critical path, a per chart schedule of events of all of the things that are-- okay.  You get the picture.  

It had put out-- the evaporation ponds and the southeast parcel out toward the end of 2009 into 2010 and kind of even-- maybe even beyond.  It looked like the can was getting kicked way down the road, and so once we saw that calendar, that schedule, it prompted a number of questions all the way back to this time critical removal action:  Why was Cherokee and Zeneca-- why were Cherokee and Zeneca-- and it appeared in concert with DTSC    moving this to such a lower priority that it was being moved out, in fact, years? 

MS. COOK:  I understand your concern.  I think that what is going to happen is that there is still going to need to be some additional investigation with regards to the information.  That is one round of information.  

For example-- I am seeing Dan looking kind of funny.  

One example is I don't have any groundwater data.  I don't know whether or not any of these chemicals are the underlying problem, so I need additional information as a better way of understanding what is the best way to address the material that is here.  

So what-- the primary issue that I want to make sure that everybody understands is that I think that a TCRA is off the table.  It is not an option.  I think that we need to finish some additional characterization, and we need to sit down here and figure out what is the best way to address the problem.  There are lots of pluses and minuses with regards to every alternative, and I think that we need to make sure that we go through that assessment to ensure that we know what we are doing.  

An excavation to this depth is a lot of trucks, a lot of contaminants, a lot of potential with regards to odor issues, a lot of dust issues.  There is a lot of issues attached to it, a lot of issues with regards to capping.  There are pluses and minuses attached to that. There are long term obligations versus short term obligations.  

But until we have an understanding of what material exists there and whether or not it is moving or not, I think it is premature to decide what way to go.  

So we are going to require-- we are already talking about what additional sampling investigation needs to take place so we can start collecting that additional information.  And I understand there is a potential-- I kind of was a little iffy in the note that I saw-- that you will be provided some comments on the raw data as it relates to that during this month. 

MS. PADGETT:  And taking it a step further, while we are focused on the evaporation ponds, during drier years, the lower evaporation pond does evaporate, meaning it turns dusty in the summer or it can be dusty; certainly around the fringe, maybe not all of it.  That turns into dust that can move through the neighborhood.   

So one of the questions that we would want to have addressed sooner than later is a plan on figuring out how to keep the risk to a minimum until we have a solution.

MS. COOK:  Okay.  We can look at some type of mitigation measures during the summer months as a way of ensuring that there is no dust generated as part of the dry process.

MS. PADGETT:  Yes.  And maybe we'll think of some other things that are a concern about it being at the surface because even some of it was right at the surface and   

MS. COOK:  Right.

MS. PADGETT:  Thank you.

MS. COOK:  So I think that I am completed, and I will return this back to you.

MR. SCHWAB:  There may be more questions, but we'll wait until we get to that spot on the agenda.

MS. WALLIS:  So we'll get our update now from CSV.  

Mr. Kambe. 

MR. KAMBE:  We are basically here to answer questions tonight.  We don't have an update per se, so anything-- we'll give our time to DTSC. 

DTSC PRESENTATION ON PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PLAN

MS. WALLIS:  All right.  And rather than go right into the questions, we do have a special presentation tonight from Ms. Yvette LaDuke, from DTSC, on public participation plan for the sites overseen by DTSC.  Would you like a chair? 

MS. LADUKE:  I will drag one of these. 

MS. WALLIS:  Would you like someone to advance your slides while you speak to the group?

MS. LADUKE:  Actually, I don't have slides.  I have it as a Word document.  It is very long.  

First of all, I would like to thank the CAG for inviting me to speak tonight.  My name is Yvette LaDuke, and I am a public participation specialist with the Department of Toxic Substances Control, and the CAG actually invited me here tonight to just kind of tell you what it is I do, what a public participation plan is, and how it works for the community.

Basically my responsibility as a public participation specialist is to ensure that there is two way communication between the community and our department, specifically, our project team, more the site and the sites in the Richmond area.  So what I do is make sure if there is any concerns in the community, that we are aware of what those concerns are and that we respond to them and make sure the community is involved in our process throughout the entire duration of the project.  

So basically what we do for each site is we develop what is called a community profile or, in this case, a public participation plan.  

Basically the difference between the two is profiles are a little bit smaller, and we do those for smaller sites.  When we have a large site that is very complex and has a lot of different issues, we do a little more extended version of that, which is a public participation plan.  

What I'm going to do with you tonight is just kind of go through and show you the different elements that are included in this plan.  This plan is going to be posted on our EnviroStor site, so notification will go out to everyone once that's done.  We hope to have this done probably before the end of the month, as soon as Lynn is able to get it converted to PDF and put it up on her site.  

And I am also going to put a hard copy of it in the library so that all of you can go and take a look at it.  It is going to be a fairly large document.  And I also want to let you know this is what's called a living document.  It is not final.  It will never be final.  And as we do additional outreach and additional issues come up, I have structured this in a way that we can update the document fairly easily with new information that comes out.  So with that, I am just kind of going to go through what I have done here.  

Right here is kind of a list of how it is broken down.  It is kind of an outline.  And just to kind of up front show you, down here, I have listed several appendices.  Each site that is within the South Richmond area, the area that the CAG is covering, the sites that surround Zeneca, I have made a separate attachment.
So there is going to be a core document, which is the plan, and then there is going to be a separate appendices for each one of the sites that is in this area.  And the reason that I did that is because it is a huge document and there are several different parts of it, and this way, if we need to do an update for one of those sites, we can easily go in and do that.  

All of these appendices will be on EnviroStor in one place with the plan, and we will let you know where that is located so you can easily find it.  And it will also be included in the hard copy that is in the library.  So first of all, we just talk about the plan.  

We are mandated under the California Health and Safety Code to do a community assessment to identify our community and to develop a public outreach plan for the sites that we have jurisdiction over, and then we just have a description of the areas that this plan covers, which includes all of the sites surrounding the Zeneca property.  

And then this section here talks about DTSC's public participation program, and hopefully many of you have already become involved in our program.  Some of you may have seen this survey that we sent out regarding the Zeneca site and a couple of the other neighboring sites.  We sent those out to our sitemailing list, which was basically developed-- it is done as a radius around the site.  Some sites we do a quarter mile, half mile, eighth mile, just depending on the density of the population or the interest of the community.  

The baseline community survey is what is mailed out to community members so that all of you have a chance to answer some basic questions.  We kind of ask you:  Have you heard about this site?  Are you aware of what is going on?  What are your specific concerns?  And we use that survey as a tool so that we know what the community is concerned about, what different things that we need to take into account when we are out there and making decisions regarding the site and the cleanup.  

We do public notices when there is a decision document out, such as the FS/RAP.  When that is ready to go out for public comment, there will be an announcement that's put in the newspaper, so people who are not included will hopefully be able to see it and participate if they are interested.

We do fact sheets, which aremailed out to individual community members, announcing a decision point, whether it be we are going to have a comment period, we are going to have a public meeting, there has been a new event occurring on the site, different things like that.  

The information repository is basically the Richmond Library and the DTSC file room.  Those are the locations where the documents are available for your review.  

We do public comment periods on our decision documents that allows the community the opportunity to comment on different decisions that we are making and give us feedback.  And sometimes, you know, you guys are able to tell you us things that we didn't consider, and we do make changes and alterations on some of our decisions if-- you know, if we find something that we didn't consider, that is always an option.  And then we respond to written comments that we receive, and we do work notices, notifying you of when work is going to occur.

And then here, I included some information on the community advisory group which was formed for this site and basically just kind of chronicled some of the events that occurred in the formation of the CAG.  

And then what we do is we outline communication strategy, and what this is is basically feedback that we get back from you, the community members, telling us how best we can interact with you and get the information out to those of you who desire it.  And so basically, as a result of the surveys we receive for the site, we develop the easiest way to talk to your community, which includes emails that DTSC is sending out.  

And we do have an email contact list for the site, and if some of you would like to be on that notification list and are not now included, you can send me an email, and I will make sure that you get included on that.  We also do mailings and we have our own EnviroStor database, which is set up to include all of the documents related to the site.  

We also are participating here in your monthly CAG meeting so that you can have one on one time with us and we can respond to your questions in person, and then we also can set up briefings for your community members.  A lot of times we'll do it with local elected officials.  If there is any type of special community groups, neighborhood councils, whatever the situation is, we are available to attend those as well.  

Okay.  Then we have recommended public participation activities, and again, a lot of that is based on the level of community interest and the level of information that the community is wanting from us.  You know, for a smaller site, if the community doesn't have as many questions, we may just limit it to somemailings.  

For sites where the community is more involved, such as this one, we'll participate in CAG meetings.  We do briefings, and it is a much more extensive outreach process.  And so Section 3.4 just kind of identifies some of the feedback we got from the community as far as what they would like to see us do in their community.  

Then we have a section here where it lists DTSC contacts, and basically the first few contacts are project supervisors.  And it includes Barbara and myself, because we are kind of the umbrella, and we are involved in all of the sites in this area.    

And then it is also broken down-- I have Lynn listed for the Zeneca site and the UP properties and Bio Rad and Harbor Front.  And then Harbor Way South, we have a new project manager that was just assigned to the site.  It is Katherine Hill.  And then we have Liquid Gold and the Gun Club,  Jacinto Soto with our department.  Marina Bay is Tony Natera.

So it shows you-- for each of those sites, if you have a concern or question about a specific site, it gives you the project manager who you can contact, or you can, of course, contact me, and I will make sure your question gets answered.  

And then I broke down each of our major outreach documents:  Our fact sheets, work notices, those type of things, and it just gives a brief description on what those are as well as the Richmond Library, and it lists the times that it is open, so you can know when that is available.  You can go and take a look at our documents on file there.  

And then again, it is just talking about public meetings, mailing lists, responding to comments, and it gives a brief description of what that involves so that if we talk about doing a response to comments, you are aware of what that means and what will happen when we are ready to send out that document.

Okay.  And then this here is just a profile on the Richmond community, and basically we have just a brief, little couple paragraph history.   

And then what we do here is I actually go to the census website and I pull out some basic information on the community.  The main reason that we do that is to identify if there is any possible different languages spoken in the community so I know if I need to translate my documents into another language.  

And we also do it just so that we know-- you know, there is different demographics in our community.  We maybe need to go to several different places so that we can speak to all of the different areas of the community.  We want to make sure-- you know, if there are several different neighborhoods or neighborhood councils that we make sure when we go that we talk to each one of them so that no one is left out of our process.

So that is kind of what we do as far as this, and we get a good breakdown and a good idea of who all is included in your community.  

We also list our key contacts, which includes your local elected officials, and we have listed the neighborhood councils that are in the vicinity of the site as well, so we make sure those people are included in all of the information that we send out so that they are all aware of what is going on.  And so that is the basic makeup of the core of the public participation plan.  

And then-- I know my time is running out, and I apologize.  What I am going to do is just real quickly show you-- I will give you an example with the Zeneca.  

This is the appendix for Zeneca, and it just shows a brief little map right here of the site.  And then I have listed for you all of the documents that are available at the library, and I have done this for each of the sites:  The Harbor Front Tract, the Marina Bay, the BioRad, the UC Richmond.  All of them are set up the same way.  It gives you a listing of each document that is in the library.  So if there is a specific one you want to look at, you can just go and pull this up and see if it is available, and then it gives you a brief site history.  

And then I have a schedule of the public participation activities that shows you many of the ones that have already been completed, and then we have anticipated-- and, of course, if those dates change, this will be updated to reflect the changes. 

And then it shows the community survey that went out-- this is when Nancy Cook, my predecessor, was involved with the site, and it shows what types of responses we've received.  

And then following that we have also listed every single written comment that we've received, so you can take a look and see what everybody commented on regarding the site.  And it is broken down by environmental concerns, health concerns, and then we put the other ones under "Other."  We had a few other concerns, so we got a lot of comments, as you can see.

And then basically following this, what I have included in here    and I will page down real quick-- is I have included the fact sheets and work notices and public notices that we have sent out for this site.  And all of the ones that I can find so far-- I think I have gone through most of Nancy's files, and I have included all of those in here.  And so if you want to go to one place to see all of the fact sheets that we have sent out on Zeneca, they are all right here in this appendix for Zeneca.   

The ones that we've sent out for UC Richmond are under the appendix for UC Richmond, and then the ones for BioRad are included under that appendix as well.  So I won't go through all of those tonight because it is quite extensive, but again, they will all be available on our  EnviroStor, hopefully by the end of the month, and a notification will go with that.  And I will also be putting hard copy in the Richmond Library by the next CAG meeting, so... 

DTSC & CSV Q&A, INCLUDING QUESTIONS FROM PUBLIC 
MS. WALLIS:  Thank you.  Thank you.  Thank you.  Thank you.  

We'll go now to the question and answer period.  It looks like Dr. Clark has a question right off the bat.  These will be questions for either DTSC, for Cherokee Simeon, or for-- about the presentation by Ms. LaDuke.  

Dr. Clark. 

DR. CLARK:  Just quickly, in regard to the documents that were referred to that you have indicated are at the library, the question is is that you sent those documents to the library and you verified that those documents are there because one of the problems that I have experienced over the years is that documents are supposed to be at the library and documents are not at the library.

MS. LADUKE:  I actually last month, on Friday morning after the CAG meeting, went to the Richmond Library and wrote down each document that was there for each of the sites, so I did do that. 

DR. CLARK:  Okay.  Good.

MS. WALLIS:  Another question or comment?  

Mr. Schwab?

MR. SCHWAB:  That is great.  Yvette, that was great.  Thank you. I find this interesting, though.  Is this a new thing that DTSC is doing, is coming up with such a thorough plan?  Because we have been at this for four years now, and it seems like this should be at the beginning.

MS. WALLIS:  I need to change the batteries on that, so we'll share this one.

MS. LADUKE:  Actually, we do this for all of our sites.  We do a profile for the smaller sites, the ones that aren't this involved.  This is a very extensive site, and there is a lot of community outreach that's been involved in this.  So I did a much more extensive plan on this with this.  And this was started when Nancy and Diane were involved.  It just did not get completed.  And there's actually more that I want to add to it, and I have not gotten there yet.  There is a lot of information out there, so this will be ongoing.  It is living.  

And I am looking to any of you too.  If you think something else needs to be included in here that is not, please feel free to let me know because I am willing to add.  This is for you.  This is your document.  This is going to show all of the communication, and so we want to make sure that the community's needs are met by this and we have a good plan outline so that you receive the information that you would like.

MR. SCHWAB:  Actually, I have another question.  First, just a suggestion on the document.  Where you list the items that are on EnviroStor, those will be links, right, within the documents so you go right straight to the documents listed for each site?

MS. LADUKE:  You mean as far as the reports itself?  We can do that if you like.

MR. SCHWAB:  That would be good.  It would make it a lot more tenable.  This is an electronic world.

MS. LADUKE:  We'll work with our people.

MR. SCHWAB:  Okay.  It's just a suggestion.

MS. COOK:  But that means that you are pulling a public participation plan down from the Web because   

MR. SCHWAB:  Sure.  But that is the way a lot of us work. 

MS. LADUKE:  It may not be on there right away.

MR. SCHWAB:  That was just a suggestion.  My next question is:  You said that this plan covers all of the properties within the Richmond South Shoreline area. 

MS. LADUKE:  It covers the ones that we have jurisdiction over.

MR. SCHWAB:  More than just the Zeneca site?

MS. LADUKE:  Yes.  It has Zeneca.  It has the UC properties, which includes the Blair Landfill and the Gun Club, and it includes Marina Bay, Meeker Beach, the UC property, BioRad, Harbor Front Tract, and Harbor Way South.

MR. SCHWAB:  Good.  That must mean that the DTSC is intending to be fully engaged in this entire effort until all of these properties have been cleaned up, right? 

MS. COOK:  Yes.

MR. SCHWAB:  Is that a safe assumption to draw from that, Barbara? 

MS. COOK:  Yes.

MR. SCHWAB:  And I really appreciate that because I think as a resident here, I know it is going to take a long time for us to get all of this done, so it's great to see your commitment on that. 

MS. COOK:  I have been here for 20 years at some point, but I don't think I will want to be here until the end. 

MR. WEINER:  You are going to have to clean it up fast.   

MS. WALLIS:  Other questions, comments from Ms. LaDuke, DTSC, or Cherokee Simeon?  

Ms. Padgett.  

Mr. Blum and then Ms. Padgett?  

MR. BLUM:  I apologize.  I got here late.  This is a living document.  If we find photographs and such historical ones    there is a historical section so that things can be included in there so there is a complete record.  Yes?

MS. LADUKE:  Yes.

MR. BLUM:  So that we can contribute? 

MS. LADUKE:  Yes.  I am definitely looking for contributions from the community.  And I will run it through Barbara and Lynn so they have a chance to take a look at it, and then we can get it posted.  I don't know how to do it, but somebody will get it posted.

MR. BLUM:  Thank you.

MS. WALLIS:  Ms. Padgett and then Mr. Schwab.

MS. PADGETT:  Thank you, Yvette.  We are looking forward to adding to your document and expanding it.  One of the things I would like to have the CAG either talk about or comment on is the idea of including a description of the CAG's makeup and maybe its committees and the kind of work we do and maybe a little history about that, if that would be helpful for you.

MS. LADUKE:  Sure.  My appendix A-- hopefully all of you can hear me.  Appendix A is entitled "CAG," and basically what is included there now is-- let me kind of scroll down here real quick-- has the application that all of you filled out to join the CAG.  It has the survey that was used.  It has the fact sheet that was used to solicit interest and participation on the CAG.  We posted the MOA on here.  So basically what I have now is what was used to form the CAG.

MS. PADGETT:  Would you consider including our bylaws and our mission statement?  Our bylaws include our mission statement at the beginning.  Would that be acceptable    

MS. LADUKE:  Yeah.  You can send it to me.  Okay.  And then here is also-- this is just kind of giving the outline, the initial    when you are having your initial planning meetings, all that is also included on here.

MS. PADGETT:  I have some other comments to Barbara, Lynn, and possibly to Cherokee regarding the update.  

On the Zeneca/Cherokee site, there is a bullet here that DTSC reviewed and provided comments on the annual groundwater and surface water monitoring report.  Were those comments recent?  I am not sure we saw an update on EnviroStor.  Maybe I missed it.  It is the third bullet down, first section, first page. 

MS. COOK:  Okay.  We have to move it to a different location in EnviroStor.  There is a number of places in where we    

MS. PADGETT:  So we will see it soon?

MS. COOK:  Yes.   

MS. PADGETT:  In the fourth bullet, first page-- the fourth bullet, this section, "Activities Completed," the second sentence says:  "DTSC is evaluating the first round of sampling data.  This relates to the soil gas samples on Lot 3, and we'll be requesting additional locations be sampled." 

Does that mean-- if my memory is correct, there were 50 plus    say, 55 soil gas wells installed to about 5 feet throughout Lot Three in December and the first part of January.  Soil gas samples were collected from those 50 plus wells.  You are in the process of evaluating that data, and you are going to request additional locations be sampled.  

Does that mean of the 55 that exist or does that mean more wells will be installed?

MS. COOK:  More wells will probably be installed or more soil sample locations will be selected.  Whether or not the wells or what the wells will use, I am not sure.

MS. PADGETT:  Okay.  And when will we see a review of that data?  We haven't seen the data and we haven't seen your review of the soil gas.  (Inaudible) the geologist.

MS. COOK:  (Inaudible) is now reviewing this, so we need to get his comments first.  

MS. PADGETT:  Okay.  Then it will be posted?

MS. COOK:  I guess the answer to that was yes.

MS. PADGETT:  She answered.

MS. COOK:  An attorney would say:  "You have to answer 'yes' or 'no'."  

MS. PADGETT:  In the Harbor Front site, DTSC reviewed and provided comments on the revised site investigation report.  Are we going to see those as well?  Will we see those comments?  

MS. TOTH:  (Inaudible).

MS. PADGETT:  Sometime soon?  

MS. TOTH:  Yeah, hopefully.  

MS. COOK:  We are hoping that the final report will be submitted by mid May-- all right, mid April.

MS. PADGETT:  Under the UC Richmond Field Station-- you weren't here last month, Barbara, when we made comment on the time critical removal action where the PCBs were removed.  In the summary report about what happened out there, we were a little surprised that UC employees were used to backfill those pits and    given that the bottoms and sides of the pits still had hazardous waste levels of PCBs present.  And it was the UC Richmond Field Station employees who were putting lining in those pits and then backfilling them with clean fill.  Our question was:  Is it appropriate for UC Field Station employees to be in and around areas that are being remediated?  Is that really-- did DTSC sign off on that plan, to have employees involved in the closure of these time critical removal action pits?

MS. COOK:  The Department requires that the parties who have worked on the sites be in accordance with the OSHA standards.  Based on comments that this CAG as a whole has provided to UC, UC and many of-- at least a year, maybe two years ago, made the effort of making sure that there are staff that may have come in contact with hazardous substances were 40 hours' substance trained and complied with the 40 hours of requirements.  So long as they are complying with the federal state standards as it relates to OSHA, I cannot say yes or no.  They just have to ensure that they are in compliance with those standards, and the agency that does the oversight and review of those is the Department of Industrial Relations.  So they have 40 hours of health and safety staff.  They can do the work, provided they have the training and meet the requirements that are there.

MS. PADGETT:  So as a follow up, then, for the CAG, we should be contacting both UC and Cal/OSHA to find out if those employees have, in fact, had their update of their eight hours because I think-- is it annual?  We should check in to see whether these employees are, in fact, one, all trained, and secondly, are they current.

MS. COOK:  Yes.  You can do that.

MS. PADGETT:  Okay.  On the Marina Bay five year review, it says that the City of Richmond submitted its first draft of the five year review.  Will that be made available online?

MS. COOK:  So-- okay.  I will talk to Carol when she gets back next week to make sure that it is uploaded into the system.  My problem is my project manager has been pulled off on a special task, so I am not quite sure where the status of his review is on this document.  I know that they've had some meetings, but I think he is still going through the document.

MS. PADGETT:  Okay.  When you were giving the update, you used the term "idea of where they are going with this."  You are reviewing it to get an idea of where they are going? 

MS. COOK:  Well, as part of the five year review and part of the sampling effort that was done, one of the new requirements in a five year review is to evaluate what new standards and requirements need to be taken in place since the time that was done.  

We require soil gas sampling, and I think that Karen has already given this group presentation with regards to some of the results of that.  And there are some additional sampling that was being done and having to come to resolution as to how to address the soil gas sample results that were found in Shimada Park.  So that is one of the things that I think they are trying to work through.

MS. PADGETT:  Okay.  I can give the microphone up.  And before we finish this part, I have other comments that I would like to talk about relating to the funding of our support ending.

MS. WALLIS:  Dr. Esposito, if you want to pass the mic.

DR. ESPOSITO:  I just thought it would be appropriate at this point to convey a thanks to the Toxics Committee, to Donna Lofstrom, who responded to one of the action items that we had at the last meeting, and that is the question was raised:  Are there any studies or any data that indicate that the usual engineering controls that are put into place and the costs of remediating areas like the Zeneca site have been actually shown to protect the human health of the inhabitants of such places.  And the Toxics Committee has been asking this question for a while and looking for such data and has not been able to find any, and Ms. Lofstrom also affirms that there are no such data.  There are data showing that the engineering controls that are put into place are either working well or well enough, but there are no data that have to do with health surveys.  

That is not the responsibility, as I understand it, of DTSC, to do a health survey, but I think it is important for the public to know that these engineering controls are one piece of science, and health survey data are a different piece of information. 

In point of fact, the institutes of medicine and the national institutes of health have been writing about the methods that one can use to do such health surveys since 1999.  It is not    it is difficult.  It isn't impossible and, hopefully some day, some California health department will take it upon itself to make such a retrospective view.  

I think we are over five years out on Marina Bay Village.  For example, individuals have been living in the presence of what we think to be the appropriate controls, so I would like to thank her for responding and looking into the matter for us once again.   

MS. WALLIS:  Dr. Clark? 

DR. CLARK:  Thank you.  I support the comments that have just been made, but I will even take it further than that.  

You know, first of all, we heard a report at our last meeting about some institutions or controls relating to vapor intrusion, and the presentations all sound great.  Like most of the presentations, you know, they sound great:  Don't worry.  Be happy.

However, we know the reality of it is that it doesn't always work out like that.  We could name many situations, starting out with Love Canal in New York and all, where they thought that everything was okay when they built those houses on this former Hooker Chemical site that was supposed to have been cleaned up and remediated.  And everybody thought it was okay and so forth until they have moved in and this contamination started oozing out of their yard and so forth, and then they found out that it wasn't okay.  So we went down that particular situation before.  

Other incidents where-- I think it was the landfills and somewhere in the area was supposedly cleaned up and remediated, and they were having concerts on the site.  And all of a sudden, one concert, the methane gas and so forth started to explode.  People thought it was part of a concert, the fireworks, but unfortunately, it wasn't.  

So, you know, these are really stories.  So I am just saying we have been there.  You know, ideally-- you know, the technology worked out fine, but we know that in many cases, it hasn't. 

So my position is this here, is that we need you to adhere to the precautionary principle and let that be our guide and light in light of the uncertainty of the size.  So why don't we have, you know, some monitoring after these, say-- this vapor intrusion technology is put in and the site is all cleaned up and it is supposed to be safe for everyone.  

But if that is all true, then why don't we do some after the fact monitoring to see whether the vapor intrusion systems are working over a period of time.  Why not do that; err on the side of precaution; take some health tests.  You know, whoever, DTSC don't do that, you know, that is great.  They are overloaded.  But let's get whoever is supposed to do it, the health department or whoever, in here because someone needs to do it.  

And we need to find out-- after these sites are so called "cleaned up," we need to have some monitoring information to address these particular issues.  And right now, that has not happened, and it is just not enough to say, Well, it ain't happening and just leave it like that.  

We need to identify who is supposed to take care of that and make that happen, and let's make sure that it happens so that our residents can be protected and respected and we learn from the past experiences that have occurred and we don't continue to make that same mistake in light of the information that we are aware of.  Because that wouldn't make no sense, and that would be a failure of our responsibility to protect the communities.  And if we are going to do right, then we might as well just get off this committee because we are not respecting nor protecting the public if we allow this nonsense to continue to go forward, and we know that it is nonsense from past experience.

MS. WALLIS:  Ms.  Graves-- and I want to make sure we have time for any questions or comments from the audience as well.  I know Ms. Padgett had a couple of closing remarks.

MS. GRAVES:  I will try to be brief.  

My only comment is under the UC Richmond Field Station update from DTSC.  This sort of piggybacks on what Dr. Clark was saying.  They talk about the time-- the time critical removal action is mentioned, and it talks about ash and debris, two former small campfire pits.  

I am sorry.  I know as an Executive Committee member, I have to be careful of what I say, but as a member of the public, I find this offensive in that the PCBs that are the whole reason for that action are not even mentioned.  

This is a public document.  If we are supposed to have a public participation process and the real reason for the action or inaction isn't even documented-- you guys lose credibility with this.  And I will leave it at that. 

MS. COOK:  We can easily modify it before it is posted.   

I have one comment that I would like to do as a follow up to Dr. Clark's initial comments with regard to documents in the library.  

I would ask that if you do go to the library and you find documents are missing, it is not unusual-- for documents that were there, are no longer there, to please let us know.  We can make regular visits to verify that everything is there.  But sometimes documents kind of leave the building, and we have no problem with taking the time to make sure that we bring another copy of the document there.  So we just need to be made aware of that when it happens.

MS. WALLIS:  Any questions or comments from the audience for DTSC about Ms. LaDuke's presentation or for Cherokee Simeon?  Just a second.  I just want to check with the audience.  

All right.  Mr. Schnepf.  And then, Ms. Padgett, you had a couple-- okay. 

MR. SCHNEPF:  Just a comment.  On air handling equipment, I was responsible for a Navy site.  And we had air handlers in the buildings, and we had a complaint from employees saying that the dirt was coming out of the air vents.  So we put a piece of clean white paper on the employee's desk overnight, and in the morning, we found grit, as if somebody had taken a pepper shaker and ground it on top of the paper.  I mean, it was not just a little bit.  It was visible clearly without any magnification.  

Upon investigation, I looked at the air handler, and it was supposed to have eight filters.  It was 8 foot-- or 10 foot wide, I supposed, or maybe 12 foot wide.  It was supposed to have eight filters in there.  And when I got down on the floor and looked through the vents towards the filters, I couldn't believe my eyes.  There was cardboard stuffed in for like four of the filters.  

So these mechanical systems are just not that good.  They are fine if they are well maintained, et cetera, et cetera, but human nature being what it is, you can't rely on that for remediation.  That is my opinion.

MS. WALLIS:  And, Ms. Padgett, and then we'll take a break after we close the Q&A.

UPDATE ON MOA NEGOTIATIONS

MS. PADGETT:  I am not sure all of the CAG members are aware of the status of the memorandum of agreement.  

For the Zeneca/Cherokee site, for the last two plus two years, we have been the beneficiary of Cherokee's funding for us.  They have been generous with funding us for our facilitator, our professional facilitator, our professional transcriptionist and our technical consultants.  

The memorandum of agreement that was amended more than a year ago now had a sunset date-- an ending date of March 31st, 2009.  That ending date was based on Cherokee's schedule of events that was published in December of 2007 with a projection that they would be fairly finished by the end of March 2009.  

As things progressed this last year, we can see that not only are they not finished, things have been moved out quite a bit.  We have a lot more work to do based on some of the things that were found this last year and based on the complexity of the site and some other reasons.

When it became evident that the work was going to continue well beyond March 31st, 2009, the Executive Committee made contact with Cherokee to find out what their position would be in extending the funding and extending the memorandum of agreement.  And by extending the funding, we have two parts:  The administrative support for our facilitator, our professional facilitator, and our professional transcriptionist and then another part relating to our professional technical support.  

Cherokee wrote a letter and said that their position was that the funding would be extended one month; that is, into April    that's where we are right now-- to wind things down and that the funding would end effective April 30th, 2009.  

We went back and said, "Are you sure?"  And they said, "Yes.  This is our position.  You can write us a letter; you can make a proposal, but this is our position."  

I made a call to the chief executive officer of Cherokee, Tom Darden.  I left a message.  I got a call back from Scott Goldy from Brooks Street.  He is one of the-- Brooks Street is a contractor for Cherokee, overseeing the site operations right now.  Scott Goldy-- it was a pleasant conversation.  We talked about the benefits of the memorandum of agreement that have occurred so far.  We went through this description of the CAG having been prudent with the funds and having spent them very wisely, ensuring that every dollar provided some broad community benefit and that all parties have had good results.  It has been positive all the way around.  

However, his position was that the funding is ending.  We could make a proposal; however, their position is, as of now, that it is ending on April 30th.  

I asked about the relationship between Cherokee and Zeneca, wanting to know if there would be an interest on Cherokee's part to reach out to Zeneca to find out if Zeneca would pick up where Cherokee finds it cannot be supporting us any further.  After all, we do have three responsible parties for this site.  We have Cherokee, the current named donor; Zeneca-- that is, AstraZeneca, one of the fourth or fifth largest pharmaceutical and agricultural companies in the worlds, and Bayer, also the same size as AstraZeneca.  Both of them have bottom lines in, any given year, somewhere between 5 and 8 billion dollars.  

So the idea that two of the responsible parties here might have funds or might have funds available to support our operation seems a legitimate question that we could ask of Cherokee.  

I asked it of Scott Goldy.  I asked if he wanted-- if he, meaning not Brooks Street, but Cherokee wanted to reach out to Zeneca to ask if they would step in where Cherokee could no longer find the funds.  He said that he would get back to us, and that was a little over a week ago.  We haven't heard back.  

So that is the status of the funding.  It is ending.  We don't know where Zeneca's role is in this going forward.  However, Zeneca's balance sheet, meaning some of their current net worth, as well as Bayer's was the result of the pollution that is still at this site.  

Yes, Cherokee is the current legal owner; however, two responsible parties have extraordinary wealth.  They are Fortune 250 corporations that have immense amounts of money, and it seems reasonable that at a minimum, we should be asking them to come forward to support us in the work that we continue to do here.

MS. WALLIS:  One last comment from Dr. Clark and then we will break.

DR. CLARK:  First of all, thanks for that report, Sherry.  That was well said, well laid out.  I support it 100 percent.  

The question that I asked, though, is that-- so what is the annual amount that we are talking about that the CAG has been getting? 

MS. PADGETT:  It varies-- for the administrative support for our professional facilitator and our professional transcriptionist, it varies between about $2,400 and $3,000 a month, and that includes copies as well.  All of the copies that are all over the room here tonight are part of that funding.  And the-- we don't have an average monthly amount for our technical consultants, for them to participate in our meetings and to keep current on the projects over all.  

It averages about-- between $6,000 and $8,000 a month for our technical consultants, and then depending on the documents that they are reviewing, it varies anywhere from $3,000 per document, if it is a small one, all the way up to the feasibility study and remedial action plan, which is $50,000.  So overall, we've had more than a quarter of a million dollars worth of funding over the last two years.  

Does that answer it? 

DR. CLARK:  Yeah.  Well, I guess in the light of-- yeah.  I mean    well, for-- I mean, that is starting to sound like a substantial amount.  If you are a nonprofit organization, that is quite a lot, but if you are one of these mega 200 Fortune companies like you are referring to, it is only a drop in the bucket.

MS. PADGETT:  Excuse me, Dr. Clark.  It is not even a drop in the bucket.  It is not even a dust speck when you think that the cost of a full time equivalent-- one individual on their payroll is more than $100,000 a year, this is tiny.

DR. CLARK:  Yeah.  I agree.  I guess the analogy is that it is really nothing compared to the profit that the company is making in addition to the facts that you raised:  That company operations or profits have been made here in the Richmond at the expense of the environment and residents.  So obviously they should take that under consideration.  

I mean, certainly the unique type of setup that we have here now with the support that we have received is really historical because I don't know that this type of situation has ever happened anywhere else, so that is really great that we have got that support.  But here, again, I think that under the circumstances that that support needs to continue.  

Now, one last question is:  Was there any specific reasons stated why the funding was stopped other than it would just stop?

MS. PADGETT:  There were two reasons given.  The first was that the memorandum of agreement sunset date was March 31st, 2009.  And I go back to the basis of that date being chosen was that the projection was that things would happen a lot faster than they did.  So the basis was faulty.  

And the second reason was that Cherokee is running into some funding restrictions, and they are looking at ways to cut, and this is one of them.  

DR. CLARK:  Here again-- my recommendation, here again, would be stated that we ask for additional funding-- you know, if we even have to, you know, bring in all of the responsible parties, that we should ask for additional funding, and we should ask for it, I think, in the light of the fact that it is also beneficial to the company in terms of building a good relationship with the community here that presently they have a bad relationship with them due to their past activities, that this would be great for their company in terms of public relations as well as building a new model of community participation and corporate participation in this whole joint effort that we are pioneering now.  Because in terms of any principles of environmental justice and respect and accountability, this particular model that we have developed here is the first, and the companies should be aware of that and the benefits to them and our requests to them, individually or collectively.

MS. PADGETT:  Thank you for those comments.

MS. WALLIS:  Ms. McLaughlin will have the last word and then we will break.

MAYOR MCLAUGHLIN:  Sherry, you said that you spoke with the representative of Brooks Street and asked him to write a letter to Zeneca and to Bayer. 

MS. PADGETT:  Not to write a letter.  I didn't care how the contact was made.  It was to reach out to Zeneca. Whether that was a phone call or in a meeting, I didn't care.

MAYOR MCLAUGHLIN:  So what I would like to do-- we have another representative of Brooks Street here, Tom Kambe.  

What I would like is to request of you to talk to with your colleague from Brooks Street and to reach out to Zeneca and Bayer.  And you have heard the arguments here for why we need the ongoing support and that there is a lot of work left to do, and I would like to make that request, that you do that and let us know the answer.  Thank you.

MS. WALLIS:  All right.  We are going to break now and resume the meeting at 8:00 o'clock.  Thank you.  

(Recess.)  

TOXICS COMMITTEE UPDATE

MS. WALLIS:  I'll turn the microphone over to the chair of the Toxics Committee, Mr. Linsley.

MR. LINSLEY:  Thank you.  

The Toxics Committee has been very active lately besides the letter, which you were all given a copy of, and the doc from the Toxics Committee to the DTSC concerning relative speeds of cleanup of different places around the Zeneca and UC Field Station sites compared with the evaporation ponds.  

And then we have also gotten a comment back in response to the UC Field Station, draft field sampling work plan, which will be out on the Internet tomorrow to those of you who have email.  

In the CAG and DTSC, we are also working on response to the actual completion report from the Time Critical Removal Action and West Stege Marsh that was referred to earlier, the PCBs.  

Also, hopefully-- before the end of the month, we hope to have a response out on the feasibility study remedial action plan for the Zeneca site, and we are looking if we want to say something in there about the soil sampling from the chemical evaporation pond area.  So as part of that previous to some of those further comments, we have our technical consultants making their last scheduled appearance tonight.  

First we have Dorinda Shipman, speaking on some of the comments on the feasibility study and remedial action plan, and then Stuart Siegel will add some other comments.  

So thank you for coming tonight.

COMMENTS REGARDING FS/RAP (FOR CAMPUS BAY)
MS. SHIPMAN:  Thanks, Stephen.  

I don't have slides tonight but just want to touch on a few more topics, expanding on what we have presented at the last month at the meeting, and one of the questions that we have is related to the geotechnical properties of some of the soils out there. 

We look at the cross sections and boring logs.  There is quite a lot of silts and clay silt.  And at least we haven't reviewed every boring log, but we didn't see a lot of information on the physical properties of that soil, its plasticity, gradation, and whether that is known.  And we are wondering if there is-- I don't think that the report touches on liquefaction potential and the fact that we have-- you know, we will have this large capped area, presumably, and whether the plasticity indices indicate-- or the blow counts-- we didn't see a lot of the blow counts.  I think a lot of work out there has been CPT or direct push, and we are just recommending that a look at that be done.

Of course, it will have to be done further down the road for development, but we are wondering if it's been considered as far as their remediation actions.  So that was one comment.  

Another question we had was on the existing slurry wall, slurry walls were-- one of the remedial objectives is to prevent off site migration.  And slurry walls were considered under the technology screening, and there was not a discussion of whether the existing slurry wall has been effective.  And it is a little unclear whether it is considered to be part of the proposed remedial alternative or alternatives for the site.  So that was another question we had.  

We had-- also had been trying to find some information on the previous groundwater extraction trench that was located on Lot Two.  And we have looked in the upland-- the 2003 upland remediation report, but our copy doesn't have some of the appendices.  But this trench was used and then it was grouted.  It is roughly parallel to the direction of groundwater flow.  So there wasn't a discussion of that in the appendix, and we weren't really sure exactly how deep it actually was.  

So, again, just wondering if-- it is unclear to us exactly whether that could be an impermeable area in Lot Two and how that may affect additional groundwater mediation, if at all, but it is unclear from the information we have.  

And then one question on the site management plan related to post construction vapor intrusion contingency measures.  

There are provisions for additional monitoring in this section, which is great, and there is discussion that some buildings may have potential sampling ports installed as part of the foundations.  And we are wondering if those ports are going to be installed, whether or not a vapor mitigation system should be installed, if there is that much of a question, only because retrofits of buildings are possible, but they can be more difficult.  Now, of course, you can also construct the building to make a retrofit easier, but, again, just another comment we had.  

And then if vapor mitigation systems are needed, it is unclear to us whether there will be just flow monitoring of those systems.  There is discussion of soil gas monitoring, but would there be flow monitoring, and if positive pressure of interior ventilation is part of the contingency, how would that be monitored just to verify that it continues to be successful.  

So those are my additional comments tonight.  I will turn it over to Stuart. 

COMMENTS ON CAMPUS BAY PORE WATER SAMPLING

DR. SIEGEL:  Thank you Dorinda.  Thank you, members of the CAG. I am sad this is our last scheduled appearance with you folks tonight, but I am happy to have been able to help you folks out and answer your questions and try to give a little insight on some of the questions I can help you with.  My focus has been on the wetlands side of the picture here; in particular, East Stege Marsh, and to some extent what we call the two freshwater lagoons or the old evaporation ponds. 

And kind of last month, I went over the questions I had, looking at the pore water sampling results and also added the Appendix I, I believe, which is the dilution factor study, and I would like to follow up on that.  And it talks about the data that came back from the freshwater lagoon. 

Can we have the next slide? 

So, in essence, there is really four recommendations I have for the pore water study, and the reason this is important is that it plays into the groundwater remediation levels for groundwater. 

MS. PADGETT:  Would you explain what that pore water sample is? 

DR. SIEGEL:  Sure.  Pore water is the water that is in the soils under the-- below the ground surface so that water that is between the soil particles literally.  And so what was done, they were trying to look at how much groundwater from upland groundwater for Lot Three was moving downhill towards the Bay into Stege Marsh and potentially becomes available for exposure to wildlife eaten either directly or through these invertebrates that are eaten either by birds or fish. 

So there is four recommendations I have made here.  One is using bioassays to determine what the appropriate action levels ought to be.  

The second is there was a direction from DTSC to reflect    and that didn't happen because it was a sample-- that was a very, very dry spring, so it wasn't anyone's fault per se.  It was just not sampled during the wet season.  

And the reason is because when it rains and things are wet, there is more water transported towards the Bay, and so they tend to rely on the recommendation that I imagine was made to collect during the wet season. 

The third one there is to sample the saturated zone.  When they sampled, they basically had a real hard time getting water because they were sampling where there is no water.  It is not very wet, so they had a very difficult time.  And then to use that data in a way, that doesn't really help get the groundwater action levels. 

And lastly is to implement a groundwater study to actually see how things worked there rather than going back to textbooks and references.  And this is how it ought to be, measuring how it really was.

So the first recommendation, the FS/RAP at this point is trying to set groundwater remediation action levels for Lot Three in terms of their effects on sensitive ecological receptors, but doing it by looking at how much dilution there is in the groundwater from Lot Three down into the marsh.   And they go through a process of looking at the groundwater moving down the hill and diffusing, which is spreading out as it goes. 

The second part is once they get to where the tides are, there is a mixing process that goes on, and then they take those numbers and apply these criteria.  They are not site specific regarding what concentrations would be adverse effects for ecological receptors.  

So what I am recommending is if you use this actual groundwater study, what is actually happening, it would be helpful, and that would be the first way to go.  

An alternative way to do it is if there are some errors that push back the calculations that really need to be corrected, that presents fairly significant effect on the numbers there as well as errors in how they-- what elevations of the tides they apply.  There have been some pretty significant errors in interpreting the tide data that really affects that groundwater gradients and calculations they use.

And then also, again, doing these bioassays, there are two ways.  One is to do a bioassay to get the organisms appropriate to San Francisco Bay, and there is a set that is commonly used to collect samples from the site and run bioassays.  That is a very standard procedure, to do that, and that is preferred.  

Another approach is to get the regional water quality control board, which has developed a whole set of guidelines to develop, which is the most appropriate water quality criteria to apply in various settings.  That is a very thorough document.  That is less preferred, but is a very strong approach, I think, that is a lot better than what is being applied right now.

Next slide.  So we get this idea that the wet season, what I am showing here that is on the top slide is the difference between what they predicted tides were in Richmond.  The-- NOAA operates a station in Richmond 105 in the Bay Area that records the tides every six minutes  that's been there 15, 20 years or so.  And they record when the tide should be in and they have the actual tide, so you look at the two and say, what's the difference? 

So there is a blue line going across the top.  I'll take the pointer here.  So there is a blue line.  This is zero.  So anything above that line means the tides were higher than predicted, and below that line, it was lower than predicted. And down below is the rainfall, which was taken off the web. 

So you can see that this spring, this was the driest on record, the driest March on record in California since 1940 or '49, whenever the records were started.  It was a very dry season, and samples were taken over here.  

So you could see when it rains, the tides get higher, which makes sense for what was happening, is that all that spring, the tides were, on average, about a half a foot below predicted and sometimes even more.  So when they sampled, they tried to get pore water samples.  It was a-- very, very dry, and the tides were lower than they normally are, so they weren't even getting tidewater in there. They reported all these problems, not being able to get a water sample, and this is why. 

The other part, which is probably minor, is that the text in the formal report says it was sampled February 9 to February 27, somewhere in there.  The data table says all the samples were on the 2nd of April and April 3rd, so this is the second one that was actually sampled.  I am not sure that was right.  It was recorded, and I didn't want to spend time trying to figure out if it was correct. 

So really, again, you can't say, you know, this is what nature gave us last year.  So the idea is to be able to go back and sample what is actually wet would give a much better indication of the wet season conditions.  

Last month I reported that if you look at year over year results from both pore water and the sediments in the marsh, there is quite a few instances where from 2007 to 2008, concentrations were going up, which means that as time goes on there is an ongoing supply of contaminants from Lot Three groundwater into East Stege Marsh, and you have more contaminants being pushed down. 

So getting a handle through more sampling of what is going on, I understand it was a recommendation not to come back in five years, and I would say for starters, get some wet season data.  And maybe that five year may or not be right, but the indication is there is an upward trend for more concentration in Stege Marsh.

And this is the area that was already dug out, remediated, and backfilled with replacement soil.  So what that means is that they will have to go back again to repeat that process somewhere down the road in a couple of years and look at those levels, and what that leads to is digging the marsh back out again. 

And the next slide.  So here I was trying to draw a diagram of what was done here.  So there is a channel in the middle of that marsh, and this is the bottom of it.  Here is the marsh plan.  These are lines here.  This is high tides here.  Low tide is down there.  Average tide is there.  This dashed line is about average level of the marsh right at the bottom of the channel. 

And the way you get exchange of groundwater is the tides fill the channel; it goes right back and forth to sides, and that is the main mechanism.  And then when the tides get high enough, they spill out of the channel and go over to the sides.  They infiltrate that. 

So over here, this is where the sampling took place, upper and lower samples from half a foot below the ground surface and one and a half feet below the ground surface.  So all the samples were taken in the unsaturated zone.  

And it is problematic because the dilution factor study upon which the ground-- Lot Three groundwater action, the criteria are set based upon using data from here about how much mixing there is with the groundwater.  But that mixing happens down here and not here, so the data really is not representative whatsoever of the mixing process that is going on. 

So it is really-- and then I don't want to repeat it here, but they, for some reason, have the average tide way up here.  It's a very funny tide data in the government report for the nearby Richmond Station that doesn't comport with it.  I can speculate why they use the wrong numbers, but they are wrong. 

MS. GRAVES:  Should the sample well be deeper, or should it be from the bottom of the ditch-- I'm sorry.  Where should they be doing it? 

DR. SIEGEL:  Next slide, and that will answer your question.  No.  One more slide.  Keep going.  One more.  There it is.  Okay.  I didn't put the slide in just for that question, and we didn't talk beforehand about it.  So the idea is that if you want to look at the groundwater processes in the marsh and you want to put the shallow piezometers where the groundwater level is, this is the ground level, and put them all below that level in this area because it will be dry most of the time here.  When the tides spill over, we will get some moisture.  In the rains, we will get some moisture in.  As we go toward Lot Three, this groundwater line will curve up a little.  That is what this yellow line is here.  This is more of an angle in the groundwater gradient than you would have expected in Lot Three.  So you go out at those wells below the tide level there. 

They will probably do this in a couple of places.  And go back one more.  Let's see.  Okay.  I think that is why they have that slide.  

So this one here is just kind of standing back for a larger scale to get a sense what is going on with Lot Three groundwater.  Here is the biologically active permeable barrier here.  The groundwater is heading right towards the marsh and into the channel to some extent.  So these are the pathways of exposure. 

What they were trying to get out of the pore water, the dilution factors, is this little arrow essentially here, which is capturing this.  They sampled above where that is happening so the data is actually not capturing the process.  

The next slide. 

So if you go on to the dilution factors-- and, again, this really comes into the determination of action levels for the Lot Three groundwater, that right now they are using unsaturated groundwater zone data to do this calculation.  They should be using saturated zone.  So they don't actually have appropriate numbers there. 

The other thing is that when they did the sampling, the backflow soils in the marsh after the excavation, as part of the remediation, there was a lot of debris in them, so there is wood and brick and concrete and stuff that makes water move much more rapidly than a typical place in a tidal marsh.

So the dilution factor studies as well-- you know, everything is pretty typical out there, so let's use our reasonable scenario.  And I am suggesting that they should not use that and instead use the conservative style because things are, in fact, not very typical, and they have probably a higher conductivity of groundwater throughout that marsh because of all the debris.   So it is really this idea of capturing this conservative scenario, and you have a much more reflective dilution factor value.  And then there is-- some of these are easily fixed back there that I talked about last month.

So when you look at this approach, you know, it's a lot easier to skip the dilution factor altogether with a bunch of models in there than use unrealistic assumptions that calibrate and all of this kind of stuff that we would rather get away from it, if you can.  So it would be better to skip that and get into the groundwater study data and use models to do that.  So it is really the key thing.  

And if you stick to the dilution factor study, use this conservative scenario, skip the reasonable, what it does in terms of effects is it uses the conservative, which gives you a dilution factor for the mixing part of the marsh.  There is two parts:  The mixing between the bay water and the groundwater, and there is diffusion as the groundwater in Lot Three heads towards the marsh.  And they have a separate dilution factor when you multiply them together. 

So if you use their reasonable number, which was 4.6, but math there brings it to 4.1.  

But if you use the conservative scenario, you get a dilution factor mixing of 1.7, which is a 60 percent reduction of what the action levels would be if you switch those with what you use there.  And I think that the data that we have today strongly supports using a much more conservative number there, and we don't have data to support this reasonable scenario.  But, again, I would recommend we skip that whole process and do the groundwater study and get the real data and not have to wonder.  So back to the slide.  That's what we were looking to do there.  

Let me just jump-- did we see that one?  Not really.  I think we covered this one here.  So I was kind of jumping along to the freshwater lagoon.  

So what I did, there was a separate 2008 transmittal of a bunch of data, and it is just data.  There is no presence criteria or anything like that.  So I just kind of went through it to see what was there, and this is sort of a summary thing, that there are three sample depths that they sampled from the near surface:  About half a foot or maybe a couple of feet down, about 4, 5 feet down, somewhere in there, a variable location to location.  And they had around 20 to 25 samples in the northern and southern lagoon, the east and west, I guess.

So they added some VOCs they found in there, some PCBs, some SVOCs. The pH rate of 5 to 10, it is not as bad in my understanding of what they had, a lot of the groundwater, but still, that is pretty broad ranged.  That could affect the transport.  Lots of metals, as you would expect, quite a few pesticides, and it was to-- Adrienne is not here tonight.  She is the health risk assessment person on our team, 

But in quick summary, the table had the ranges of results.  And EPTC, which I don't know what that is, was at 1.3 million parts per billion-- up to-- in one of the samples and down to 15, a huge range there.  Then molinate was up to 1.7 million parts per billion. 

So a couple of things really jumped out, so Adrienne-- in particular, as very high numbers of the bottom line is: Why do we care?  Well, think about what these freshwater lagoons are.  And as a scientist, I would prefer not to use those terms for these places because they are not what we would typically think of as a lagoon. 

But in terms of what the function provides ecologically is they are on the margins of the Bay.  They have water in the winter and spring.  And they are analogous in many ways to the wetland near the Bay that fills up with winter rainfall and runoff.  And the way they get used most commonly is that when the tide is high, birds that are normally on the mud flats, feeding, come up in these upland areas to continue feeding and to rest.

So when there is water there at high tides, they will use these systems.  If you have a place-- and they are attracted to these places all over the Bay Area.  Anywhere you go have these marshes.  They will use it when the tide is in.  Birds will go there.  

So when you have some pretty high contaminant levels in there, that will get into the invertebrates, which is what they feed on in the marsh and the lagoon for the most part.  They have potential to have a pretty high exposure on certain contaminants in the area. 

The other thing that is interesting is that the larger of the two, which, I guess, is the eastern one that goes out here, it stays wet a lot later in the spring than the second one, which is to the west and also much later in the year than most of the places that you find around the Bay Area. 

And what that means is that as you get later in the spring and things are dried up and this is a wet place, it dries up and draws more birds because there are fewer places for them to go, so it's greater use of the wetlands.  You have more choices.  So you are actually bringing even more birds to the place, exposing them to more contaminants that could be there.

So, in essence, I think what would be useful is to get a much better handle on what is happening in the lagoons and to see what the contaminants are really like, what the water is like as well, and sample the birds that are in there and get a much better handle on what the potential exposure pathways are through these two lagoons.  I think that is it.

Thank you.  Yes? 

DR. CLARK:  Okay.  First of all, thanks for the presentation.  I think you bring out a couple of interesting points to me in terms of some of the inadequacies in the studies in terms of not testing at the right place and so forth and under the right conditions and all of that.  Those are very important points which reminds me again of some of the concerns that were raised at our last meeting with testing.
And what I noticed is that it's like, well, the parts that you mentioned in terms of testing in the right place and the right conditions, and that raises the question about we were talking about.  I am not sure what particular chemical it was, but basically the presentation was is that, okay, these chemicals are-- particular chemicals are released.  

We know that they were released, but once they got into the environment, the presentation and the point that I am concerned about is that one thing is being released, but then over a period of time, that substance or chemical substance is changing.  And so you are measuring for what was released at first, but over a period of time do we know that it is going to change into something else?  

And so what you are measuring for that were released initially is really not what it is at the moment that you test it.  You understand what I am saying?  So it is sort of like in much more plain, it sounds like the issue that we deal with with people's concern with mercury, mercury being released into the Bay waters that contaminated the fish and the other marine life that people might eat.  And they get exposed to mercury contamination through the fish.  Well, scientifically, the mercury, when it is released from the mines and other sources, is not supposedly the main problem.  It's when the mercury, you know, goes through some change, methylizes or whatever the terminology is, and it changes, you know from the mercury that was released at first.  

That is when it causes the problem, when it, you know, breaks down and it becomes this other form of mercury.  And so you see, it is something like that with the-- what we were talking about last meeting, in addition to the points that you were raising, not testing under the right conditions, testing for the wrong substance, and all of those questions we are just beginning to understand, you know, that we end up being off base with their findings if we don't focus in on those particular points.  

And usually time that doesn't occur because why, here, again, it takes a whole a lot more money, time, and resources to do it like that. 

DR. SIEGEL:  This is a very good point.  And I think the idea of doing bioassays it one strategy to address that.  Because, as you are all aware, it is all about chemical mixtures here.  There is a ton of stuff that are all together and makes changes and moves in the environment.  And what a bioassay does is it takes it in a whole.  And it is actually somewhat difficult to separate out the bioassay-- this is causing a problem and that is not.  It is a collection of all of the contaminants and their interactions.  

And the bioassays give you direct measure.  That's why they are very nice as opposed to looking at the criteria chemical by chemical.  And they don't have the ability, especially when it comes to wildlife.  In humans it is hard enough.  But there is some data in wildlife that there is a whole lot less data, and that makes it so much more difficult.  

I will explain.  The bioassay is collecting the sediment or the water or the organism that you want to test it on.  And in a laboratory setting you expose either a fish or invertebrates, typically, to the contaminant source.  Let's say you take some groundwater here, and you let it sit for "X" number of days and due to some dilution, the source groundwater diluted by 10 or 100 or that kind of thing, and then let it go for so many days and then measure either death of the organisms or abnormalities on them if they form or that kind of thing or other effects.  

And from there they can see what concentration in the dilutions is the point at which you have an effect of that mixture of contaminants on the test organisms.  And there are several that are used in the bay environment that are done routinely in San Francisco Bay.  Any further questions from the CAG?

MR. BLUM:  Talking about groundwater moving from three down towards the marsh, we know at what level the ground water itself is.  Do we know at what level the chemical contaminants are that are causing the groundwater pollution?

MS. SHIPMAN:  Well, in the upper horizon, in that area of Lot Three, groundwater-- the groundwater surface is somewhere between 5 and 8 feet below the ground surface.  And the contaminants are dissolved in the groundwater.  So I don't know that there has been any depth discrete sampling or stratified sampling to really know if there is one zone within that dissolved mixture that has a higher concentration than the other. 

MR. BLUM:  Knowing that we are talking about five feet for water, then in that five feet, whatever the chemical mixture is, is it in the water?   

MS. SHIPMAN:  A number of the samples that have been collected are from monitoring wells, and these monitoring wells have a specific screen interval, and the screen interval is used to purge the well and collect the sample through the screen.  So typically the sample is collected within that screened interval which is probably somewhere below-- probably 10 feet below the surface, maybe, you know, somewhere at 10 feet or below, maybe even 15 feet.   

MS. WALLIS:  Dr. Clark and then Ms. Padgett.

DR. CLARK:  You mentioned that when it rains it pushes the contamination down; is that correct?

DR. SIEGEL:  Right.  In general, yeah.  The rain will raise the groundwater and have more movement towards the Bay. 

DR. CLARK:  Okay.  Well, I guess my point is that was based on pushing it down.  I want to get the clarification is that in terms of, you know, contamination in the soil, if it is contained-- if it is talking about within some type of aqueduct or some type of cement structure, the ground may be not going necessarily according to the ground, because even with the concrete and so forth, you know, it is porous so it is not totally solid.  So there could still be some seeping.  So my point is I can understand when it is raining that contamination will be pushed down, but in a situation that you are talking about pushing down into some soil sediment or something, that may be happening during the rain, but then also when the rain ceases and so forth and increase in tide, then the contamination is coming up.  You see what I am saying?

DR. SIEGEL:  Sure.  Let me use a better term than "push."  When it is raining-- when the wet season has rain, and the groundwater levels rise under the surface of the ground, and as they get higher there is a steeper gradient from that groundwater towards the Bay because of the Bay and the tides    they go up and down a lot, but there is an average that they hover around for the most part.  So the Bay end is at the table here, and when it is dry the groundwater might be on top of my water level when it gets up here.  So the higher it gets, the steeper the gradient is.  So there is more movement of groundwater towards the Bay when it is wet and there is higher groundwater levels.  

That is a process where I use the term "push" in that context, that that mechanism, you have more transports.  You are moving more contaminants towards the marsh.  "Push" is probably not the best term to use there. 

DR. CLARK:  That is good to clarify it because it may sound that you are talking about pushing the contamination, you know, down into the soil or something rather than the whole process pushing it more toward the Bay.  Yeah.

MS. PADGETT:  I have a few questions.  First, for you, Dorinda, you talked about the physical properties in the feasibility study and remedial action plan.  You talked about blow count.  I would like to hear for everyone just a brief summary of what that is and, secondly, just for everyone, what plasticity is and the liquefaction potential.  I think I know, but I think everyone would benefit by just a brief summary of what those mean and why they are important to include in the feasibility study remedial action plan.

MS. SHIPMAN:  Okay.  Blow counts refer to a measurement that can be made using certain drilling techniques, the most common being a hollow stem auger technique.  And there is a hammer typically with the environmental rigs that we use.  It is a 140 pound hammer that is dropped.  And as that hammer is dropped, for each 6 inch interval the blow counts are counted.  And the number of blow counts per 6 inches are then even added for a foot or a foot and a half and then be used using empirical formulas to give some information about the strength of the soil.

The potential for liquefaction is something that you may have heard about when seismic events are discussed in the Bay Area.  And the state has a set of liquefaction potential maps.  And the areas that can potentially liquefy-- and liquefaction is almost exactly like it sounds.  It is where upon shaking soil particles will move apart.  They may-- in a normal setting you may have soil grains that are supporting each other, but when an earthquake event happens, the particles separate and the soil can then flow. 

And a lot of the areas around the Bay shoreline are defined as liquefaction zones on these state maps.  I believe, though, for some reason, the Richmond map has not been finalized.  So I haven't looked into why or when that might happen.  But when I looked at it today, it is not quite finalized by the state.  So, again, a number of the areas around the Bay are plotted in these liquefaction zones, and during a seismic event it just means you could have some separation of soils, so you can have some movement of soil that may result in, you know, small cracks or rifts in the soil.  You may get a little bit of settlement here or there.  And then, again, it is fairly typical in the Bay Area for it to happen in areas if there were a strong enough seismic event.

MS. PADGETT:  Flow monitoring, you brought that up.  You said it would be helpful if we had some flow monitoring.  I think you used the term.

MS. SHIPMAN:  I don't believe so. 

MS. PADGETT:  I will go on to Stuart.  Stuart, we have got four things going on in this picture up here.  We have Lot Three at the northern part of it.  I don't have the pointer, but everybody knows where Lot Three is, I think.  And then we have got the biologically active permeable barrier that runs the perimeter between Lot Three and Stege Marsh, and we also have the upper evaporation pond, right there.  And then we have the lower evaporation pond.  And then we also have Stege Marsh, which is that area there, bordered by-- on the south, the Bay Trail.

The work that we are talking about in the feasibility study and remedial action plan ends right at Lot Three and doesn't-- it includes the biologically active permeable barrier, but it does and it doesn't.  The Lot Three Feasibility Study and Remedial Action Plan do not include an ecological risk assessment of the impact of the water or anything else flowing through that biologically active permeable barrier and therefore impacting the Stege Marsh area.  

So I am wondering if you have, just off the top here, have a comment on that.  And as you are commenting in the last CAG meeting you talked about the impact of the elevation difference.  And we talked a little about that waterfall flow, because the elevation difference is so great in the error that occurred in the elevation.  We asked some questions about the velocity of that water that could be coming out from Lot Three into the marsh.  Barbara wasn't here to hear that conversation.  I am wondering if you could go through and just describe it a little more.  I know you just did a little bit, but I think it would be helpful. 

DR. SIEGEL:  Okay.  So the-- let me think how best to explain that.  So the reported groundwater elevations in Lot Three, the biologically active permeable barrier are between plus three and plus four feet in GVD29, which is the old federal vertical data.  And it is one that is no longer used.  It would be a lot easier if they did.  So it varied between about plus three and plus four feet.  

The average elevation of the Bay and the tides or mean tide level as calculated at the nearby federal station in Richmond that records every six minutes for the past 20 years is about .6 feet in GVD29.  So it is about two and a half to three and a feet, roughly below the groundwater level of Lot Three active at the DATV.  

They did some calculations, both a dilution factor study used in particular, but also I think it was the pore water study that they showed elevations of-- go back one.  This one here.  Unfortunately I made that font too small, which I try to avoid doing.  Mean tide level of .6 feet here at the Richmond station.  The dilution factor study used a value of almost 2 feet there for some reason.  And I can't understand why they did that.  I can pull it out here.  I am at a little bit of a loss to understand what they used for the Bay. 

And what they used for the channel, this little schematic is the one channel closer to the middle of the marsh.  And they used the average tide elevation in this marsh as halfway up the channel.  So what I think they did was when they had measurement sensors out there, they are dry half the time because the bottom of the channel is about mid tide level, so half the tidal cycle it shows the instruments read zero.  And they just removed that data from the calculation and said, okay, for the time there is water in it.  What is the average tide height, which is interesting but doesn't tell you about groundwater. 

And the reason this is important, and that's why I put this dashed line up here, is that by having those two errors they are showing the elevation of the Bay, which is the receiving water end, being a lot higher, and therefore the gradient from Lot Three down to the Bay is much gentler, less steep, and therefore less transport. 

And they are off by quite a bit.  I did the calculations, and they are off between-- in the drier time of the year when the groundwater is lower, they are about 140 percent off on the groundwater gradients.  And when it is wetter and it is a 4 foot, they are about 70 percent off.  So they are significantly in their estimates on the gradient.  And they use this information in the dilution factor calculations.  

That's why I really pushed for this measure the groundwater of the marsh, skip a bunch of models that they have to make false assumptions to make them work.  Just skip all that and go measure it, because that way you know what is going on, and rather than a bunch of speculation and presenting data that is clearly wrong that it is easiest just to go measure it. 

So that is really one of the key things I want to get across on that.  And the other part-- and I kind of show these big arrows.  When the tide fills the channel, most of the time it doesn't go over the top.  So this is the exchange between the channel and the soils in the marsh. 

And assuming in this picture that Lot Three is off to the right, the groundwater gradients will climb towards the right as you get to that.  So there is a higher number there.  And the elevation of that groundwater will intercept the channel and water will just pour right through here.  Especially you see that in natural marshes in clays and silts.  You have soils that have some amount of wood and concrete and bricks and other stuff in there, the water moves much more easily.  There is a much more direct exchange in the water so it is very easy for that water to go back and forth.  That is always the main mechanism here and even more so because of the nature of the soils that went into that marsh.  The other mechanism is when the tides get high enough and they spill out of the channel and fill the marsh enough to get infiltration from the top and that puts some Bay water back in the groundwater, and that kind of flushes it out, actually.

MS. WALLIS:  Let's have one more closing comment.

MS. PADGETT:  I want to ask the CAG if we could just bear with this just a little bit further.  This is the last time our technical consultants are going to be with us, and I just want to ring the very last drop out of them here in this public forum.  

Stuart, while you are here, I want to ask Barbara the question about the criteria that DTSC would need or what the conditions are for DTSC to reopen the evaluation of the Stege Marsh, that is one, and I want to put it up as an action item, a question that the CAG is asking of DTSC.  

Right now DTSC has accepted Stege Marsh as its current remediation as good enough, and it is up for a five year review.  So given the information that we have that, one, there has been an elevation error and we have the difference of opinion on the pore water samples as being adequate, what-- the question is what conditions are required of DTSC to reopen the Stege Marsh for an investigation rather than waiting for the five year review.  And we could wait for two weeks or three weeks or whatever DTSC needs to answer that question. 

MS. COOK:  Can I answer one question? 

MS. PADGETT:  Yes.

MS. COOK:  Will you be providing DTSC comments on the pore water sampling (inaudible)?  

DR. SIEGEL:  The answer is yes. 

MS. COOK:  And the calculations that you used?

DR. SIEGEL:  Absolutely.  I have been putting comments together, and my understanding is they are transmitted through the CAG to DTSC. 

MS. COOK:  So we will see that before the end of April? 

DR. SIEGEL:  Whenever they give it to you, exactly.

MS. PADGETT:  Yes.  And the other-- while Barbara and you are here, Stuart, you weren't here earlier when Barbara said that the evaporation ponds, the upper and lower evaporation ponds, would not be dealt with as far as remediation until we go through a very long process.  And we all appreciate that because we want to be thorough in it; however, we are a little concerned about the impact not only on humans in the area related to the dust but also to the ecological impact.  

And in your experience, Stuart, in looking at the levels of contaminants that you saw in the data for the upper and lower evaporation ponds, is this something that should be dealt with sooner than later, or is this something that can just go the normal course of, "We'll get to it when we get to it"?

DR. SIEGEL:  I am not as familiar, myself, with relating the chemical concentration data to action criteria.  I would defer more to Adrienne, who is not here, or to Dorinda to do those comparisons.  That is why I have done a quick table and Adrienne looked at it and circled a couple of things for me to get a sense of what red flags are in that data set.  I am not as well experienced in making those comparisons.   

MS. PADGETT:  So the Community Advisory Group will not have going forward a toxicologist, a professional, to lean on in looking at the evaluation of the data.  So it is going to be, I guess, our responsibility to turn back to the CAG and say-- or to DTSC and say, "What is the risk relating to the human health exposure as well as the ecological exposure coming off those ponds?"   

MS. WALLIS:  I heard two action items, one being the transmission of Dr. Siegel's data and PowerPoint presentation to DTSC and that is the CAG? 

MS. PADGETT:  That is the CAG.

MS. WALLIS:  And the Toxics Committee? 

MS. PADGETT:  And the PowerPoint.  The PowerPoint and the data. 

MS. COOK:  The PowerPoint could not be sent to us tomorrow?  You have already presented it?  It is not like--    

MS. PADGETT:  We can give you the PowerPoint.

MS. COOK:  Thank you.

MS. PADGETT:  And Barbara, the PowerPoint, there are two of them, one from the March meeting and one from tonight. 

MS. COOK:  All right.  And the calculation (inaudible).

MS. PADGETT:  Up there when it says data, it is data with calculations. 

MS. COOK:  And I guess the end date is by the next CAG meeting. 

MS. WALLIS:  By the next CAG meeting.

MR. LINSLEY:  By the end of the month.  That is our time to get all of this stuff to you.   

MS. PADGETT:  By April 30th.

MS. WALLIS:  The one you opened with...

MS. PADGETT:  DTSC to respond, what criteria to open Stege Marsh investigation before five year review.  Right now it is closed.  And our question is we knew at the time when DTSC accepted it, we argued against it at the time.  We said that we had concerns.  And we still have concerns.  What is the criteria to reopen it?

MS. COOK:  Well, I think I will get back you to probably in the July time period.  I have a number-- all of the agencies I discussed on the lagoon.  All of those same agencies were involved in the marsh.  So they are all part of the discussion.  So I need to sit down and discuss with them the criteria.  So I want get back to it until July at the earliest, and I will just brief you at that point in time.  I don't know what I will be able to say at that point.

MS. PADGETT:  All right.  So we are looking for an answer in July? 

MS. COOK:  Because I need to talk to a number of federal and state agencies.

MS. WALLIS:  I said "Barbara Cook update by July meeting." 

MS. PADGETT:  Thank you.

MS. WALLIS:  Just doing a quick time check.  Okay.  Is it almost 9:00 o'clock, five 'til.  So we have yet to run into public comment, which I see some hands from the audience.  We could just segue into that as an extension of this conversation.  No more CAG comments on that.  Can we do that or do we stay within the Toxics Committee time period?  And we will need an extension from you.

MR. SCHWAB:  I move that we go into public comment period and add 15 minutes to our overall meeting.

MAYOR MCLAUGHLIN:  Second that. 

MR. SCHWAB:  All in favor?  Anyone opposed?  Motion passes.
PUBLIC COMMENT:

MS. WALLIS:  We'll move into public comment meeting.  We can accomodate any questions about any topic about what has been discussed or otherwise.  I will select from the audience first and then pick up additional CAG members. 

MS. SHIPMAN:  Can I make one clarifying comment regarding liquefaction?  When I said it occurs, there are liquefaction zones around the Bay Area, I should also add that there are mitigation measures for liquefaction, so that if you are building a building or trying to contain something in the soil, there are actions you can take to mitigate and minimize liquefaction. 

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you.  From the audience, please identify yourself for the transcription.   

MR. MINAULT:  My name is Paul Minault for Allied Propane.  Barbara, a question for you.  We talked earlier about dust in the lagoons and the idea of suppressing dust in the summer.  And you said, "Yes, we need to think about that."  When might that be thought about and when might we talk about it? 

MS. COOK:  You know, I think we are going to go back to the office and look at that and hopefully have something-- we will start discussing that and we will-- you know, we will be having something probably in the May or June time period.  Okay? 

MS. WALLIS:  Other comments during the public comment period?  Please.  And identify yourself.  

MS. CHILD:  Margaret Child.  I am a member of the community.  And I am very concerned about what is coming up now about pollution to the Bay.  It hasn't-- it seemed to me it hasn't really been addressed in the past, and it is something that concerns me greatly.  And I am wondering whether that is something-- I know DTSC, generally speaking, is not involved in water, but it seems to me if there is an area in the Bay that we know of that is polluting the Bay, then two things have to happen, that there is some kind of agency that needs to know about that and then maybe the same agency or another agency needs to do something about it.  So that is my question.  Who would need to know and then what would they do and when and how?

MS. WALLIS:  Response from Ms. Padgett? 

MS. PADGETT:  Margaret, your question is right on target.  And we have had that concern for some time relating to the Clean Water Act, Part 303D.  The USEPA has the requirement that all water areas be cataloged as far as their pollution.  And if we have got an area that is polluting, say, the San Francisco Bay, it should be cataloged.  And if it is on the 303D list, then a threshold, some kind of a measure-- it is eluding me here, the name of-- yes.   

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  TMDL. 

MS. PADGETT:  TMDL, yes, which is a Total Maximum Daily Load.  That is right.  That's what was eluding me.  The total maximum daily load needs to be evaluated for the water until such time as it is cleaned up and remediated.  Usually in the State of California the water quality control board is responsible for developing the 303D list, and you would-- we would expect that this area, the Stege Marsh and the San Francisco Bay that is being impacted by these contaminants flowing off the property would be on the 303D list.  

Since this property has been-- and this area has been moved under DTSC control, the Water Board has, let's say, washed its hands of the area and has not paid it much mind.  So there seems to be another disconnect between the need for the total maximum daily load of the water in the area because it really-- in our mind it does qualify for 303D listing.  And why it isn't on the 303D question is an excellent question and should be taken up with the Feds.

MS. WALLIS:  Any last comments from the public?  

MR. KILKENNEY:  Hi.  My name is Paul Kilkenny.  I am a Richmond resident.  I don't have a question, but a comment in regard to the summary of violations and whatever prosecutorial efforts the State is doing and whether or not the tough talking attorney general or whoever is overseeing this litigation or whatever could address the defendants in this case with regards to funding for future CAG endeavors. 

MS. COOK:  I may have forgotten, but I thought that was the letter that was sent to the Department.  And I can't remember.  You know, all I can do is bring this back to the Office of Enforcement and ask them to give me an update.  And hopefully I can get something back at the next meeting with regards to what the status is of the summary violations.

MS. PADGETT:  As an update for the public, DTSC issued two summary of violations on June 29th, 2007.  One was issued to the University of California.  One summary of violation was issued to University of California for the UC Richmond Field Station site; another summary of violation was issued to Zeneca.  Among the things that were cited in the two summaries of violation were the creation of an illegal hazardous waste facility by transporting-- and the transport of hazardous waste from the UC Richmond Field Station site over to the Zeneca site, moving it around, stirring it up, treating it and then temporarily storing it and then moving it the following year, moving it back to the UC Richmond Field Station site, treating it some more, moving it and some more hazardous waste back over to the Zeneca site and permanently storing it there, all without a permit from DTSC.

DTSC is the authorizing agent for the creation of and the ongoing management of hazardous waste landfills.  And they did not issue a permit for this activity.  And we do not know what the status is of those summary of violations.  We still have an illegal hazardous waste fill on our shoreline, and we do not know what the status of the summary of violations are.

MS. WALLIS:  As part of the public comment period I have been given-- I will ask you to read this, Mr. Minault, to add to the action item listed with the concurrence of the CAG.  

MR. MINAULT:  Barbara Cook to report in May or June on dust in the lagoons.   

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you.  I am going to add that based on your note.  Thank you very much.  And ask the CAG to move to its final items on the agenda to accomodate our additional time period.  Dr. Clark? 

DR. CLARK:  I can make the comments on the document.

MS. WALLIS:  Okay.  Thank you.  I will ask then our chair, Mr. Schwab, to go onto the committee updates.

MR. SCHWAB:  Thank you.  Thanks everybody for patience through a long evening, but there is one more internal matter we need to take a look at now.  You all know that the way the CAG is set up is we have an executive committee that consists of 5 people.  Joe Robinson, who was elected the co chair in our December meeting, has requested a three month leave of absence from being co chair and from the CAG in general, which is, I am sure, perfectly fine.  

But I would like to suggest that we have someone take the role of co-chair on an interim basis until he decides he wants to come back into that role.  So assuming that is okay, my question is, is there anyone who would like to volunteer for the role for at least the period of three months as co chair of the CAG to join Carolyn, myself, Sherry and Stephen, the other Executive Committee members.  Do we have any volunteers for this role?  Don Schnepf.  Are there any other volunteers for this role? 

DR. CLARK:  I was going to say since you framed it like that, I would like to.  Unfortunately I can't.

MR. SCHWAB:  Well, thank you.  I appreciate your honesty.  Let me rephrase the question then.  Is there anyone who is willing to do this and actually able to do this?  Deborah Dodge.

MS. DODGE:  Sure.  

MR. SCHWAB:  Okay.  So we have apparently two candidates.  My suggestion is do we do a vote?

MR. BLUM:  Take them both.

MR. SCHWAB:  Take them both.  Does that seem acceptable to everyone that we would have two temporary co chairs to the Executive Committee?  Okay.  So all right.  Therefore I move that we accept Don Schnepf and Deborah Dodge as temporary co chairpersons of the Executive Committee.  

MS. BECKLES:  Second. 

MR. SCHWAB:  Any discussion?  Ayes?  Are there any nays?  Great.  Thank you.  That's great.

MS. WALLIS:  Does that conclude the committee updates? 

MR. SCHWAB:  So I will convey to Joe Robinson that it takes two people to replace him, and that ought to make him feel better.

MS. WALLIS:  So we'll move to Ms. Graves on the approval of prior meeting minutes and any last minute wrap up. 

DR. CLARK:  May I make a comment? 

MS. WALLIS:  Perhaps after Ms. Graves does the minutes, and then we'll have a wrap up comment from Dr. Clark and a closing comment from Ms. Padgett.

CLOSING:

MS. GRAVES:  Okay.  So the outstanding minutes are January and February.  I just previously distributed those to people that didn't have email.  I would like just to go ahead and put a motion to approve those.  Okay.  Those are seconded.  All in favor?  Any opposed?  Okay.  Motion passes.  The March minutes are still in progress of being formatted, so we will have to deal with those next month.  Thank you.

MS. WALLIS:  So Dr. Clark, Ms. Padgett and Mr. Blum have closing comments. 

DR. CLARK:  Thank you.  I just want to follow up on the point that we made about getting our information and concerns to DTSC in regard to the issues about not having the technical assistance and so forth that whatever else this CAG is supposed to need to carry out or charge.  And the reason I am saying that is it is great that we had a funding from the sources that we have, and if that continues, which I think that it should, that is all great. 

But in the final end, in terms of carrying out our responsibilities and so forth, we need to pass on our concerns and issues to DTSC, and they can deal with them.  They need to pass them on to the legislature and whoever else that provides resources to get things done.  And I say that in regard to us carrying out our particular charge here and letting it be known things that, I guess, hinder our carrying out of our charge, and that we pass it on to the appropriate people.  Because we don't have the resources, and that is not our job.  And that supposedly is the job of the responsible parties and the government agencies who are supposed to be representing us.  

And we should pass that on to them in carrying out our due diligence.  Otherwise I don't want our community knocking on the West County Toxics Coalition door and saying, "Why you didn't do this and that and why you didn't look out for our interest and this and that."  So I am doing my charge, and I will pass it on to the agencies that are supposed to be carrying out theirs and looking out for us, and then I can tell the community I passed the concern on so I fulfilled my charge.  

Whatever they are told that by their supervisors or the state legislature and then all of the money is going to Afghanistan or whatever, that is their problem.  The community will deal with that.  But at least we did a step by step process to carry out our charge, because obviously all of this is going to end up coming down to time and resources.  

So I would, you know, recommend that-- especially also following up on the point too, and I think that the agencies need to be aware of this as well as admission in the reports about these issues for me in terms of laying out this whole process of so many flaws in so many studies and so forth, and especially how these chemicals are changing and so forth and to be able to do that type of realistic investigation when we are dealing with these sites so we know what we are talking about. 

And obviously that is going to require more resources because we haven't been doing it like that before, but we need to start doing it like that because that is the real world happening, period.  You know, don't go out there to the marsh and looking for a frog and it is-- or looking for a frog when it is tadpole season or going out there and looking for a caterpillar and butterflies flying all around you, and you don't know the process, that the caterpillar metamorphosed into the butterfly that is flying all around you.  

So you need to be aware of that, and that is obviously going to take more money and so forth.  It don't come from me, you know.  So you need to be prepared for that and need to be prepared to tell the community why you can't do that and why did the money all go to Afghanistan or somewhere.

MS. WALLIS:  Ms. Padgett and then Mr. Blum.

MS. PADGETT:  This is the last meeting that we will have paid support for some time.  And I want to pass on a very deep thanks for a couple of years of really some outstanding work and support from our facilitator, Kay, our professional transcriptionist, Joanna.  She's done just extraordinary work quietly over here at the end of the table, and we are really going to miss her product.  

Kay, it's just been an outstanding service you have provided us in bringing order to chaos.  Dorinda, Adrienne and Stuart, you have been the recipient of, I think, thousands of emails from me, perhaps.  I think it is probably thousands.  And we have been in communication sometimes daily for weeks and months which have now turned into years.  

And we the CAG can't thank you enough for the extra effort and the extra mile that you went again and again in being there for us when we really needed some help.  We know that we spent the money very wisely.  We wanted to be sure that every dollar we spent came out with a product that meant a difference.  And we can say with confidence that every dollar we spent on your service has, in fact, made a difference in looking at this site more thoroughly and through a different lens from the community's perspective.  

We wish that there would be a reconsideration.  We will look at alternatives going forward, but I wanted to pass on a personal thanks on behalf of the CAG for extraordinary service from all five of you.  Thank you.

MR. BLUM:  Hard to follow that.  I agree completely.  Thank you to all of you.  I also would like to thank Cherokee Simeon for funding that.  It is much appreciated by me.  I think it was useful.  The other comment is to our Executive Committee.  I would recommend that we write a letter to DTSC requesting that they reopen the investigation into the East Stege Marsh so that Barbara can have that along with whatever documentation she is going to get.  

If anybody wants help with writing it, I would be happy to, but that is my request.  You guys can take it up at your leisure at the executive meeting.

MR. SCHWAB:  Eric, would you be willing to write a draft? 

MR. BLUM:  Certainly.

MR. SCHWAB:  If you send it to us, we will take it from there.  Thank you.

MR. BLUM:  You got it. 

MR. SCHWAB:  Any final questions or comments from anyone?  Well, thank you again for being here this evening.  And we look forward to seeing you next month, May 14th.  Thank you.  
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